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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of the charitable
company for the year ended 31 August 2017. The annual report serves the purpose of both a Trustees’ report, and a
Directors’ report under company law.

The Trust operates an academy for pupils aged 4 to 16 in Chulmleigh and surrounding areas. It has a pupil capacity of
1,041 and had a roll of 881 in the school census on 5 October 2017.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution
The Academy is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's Memorandum and
Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Academy.

The Trustees of Chulmleigh Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law. The Charitable Company is known as Chulmleigh Academy Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year, except as noted, are included in the Reference and
Administrative Details on page 1.

Members’ liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Company in the event of it being
wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be
required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they cease to be a member.

Trustees' Indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance purchased at the Academy Trust’s expense to cover the liability of the
Trustees which by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or
breach of trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Academy Trust, provided that any such
insurance shall not extend to any claim arising from any act or omission which the Trustees knew to be a breach of trust
or breach of duty or which was committed by the Trustees in reckless disregard to whether it was a breach of trust or
breach of duty or not and provided also that any such insurance shall not extend to the costs of any unsuccessful defence
to a criminal prosecution brought against the Trustees in their capacity as Directors of the Academy Trust. The limit of
this indemnity is £1,000,000.

TRUSTEES
Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

On incorporation, the first Trustees of the newly formed Academy were appointed for a term of four years from the
date of incorporation.

The Academy's Board of Trustees comprises the Executive Headteacher (who is the Chief Executive Officer), two
Parent Trustees, two Foundation Trustees, up to two Staff Trustees (providing that the total number of Trustees,
including the Executive Headteacher, who are employees of the Academy Trust, does not exceed one third of the total
number of Trustees) and up to eight other Trustees. In addition, the Secretary of State has the right under certain
circumstances to appoint further trustees as provided for in the Articles of Association.

The Academy Trust shall have the following Trustees as set out in its Articles of Association and funding agreement:

* up to 7 Trustees who are appointed by the members (including up to 2 staff Directors).

* a minimum of 2 Parent Trustees who are elected by parents of registered pupils at the schools within the
Academy.

* up to 3 Co-Opted Trustees who are appointed by the Trustee (excluding any Trustees who were themselves
co-opted).

» the Chief Executive Officer

Trustees are appointed for a four year period, except that this time limit does not apply to the Chief Executive Officer.
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)
Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee can be re-appointed or re-elected.

When appointing new Trustees, the Board will give consideration to the skills and experience mix of existing Trustees
in order to ensure that the Board has the necessary skills to contribute fully to the Academy's development.

Policies and Procedures adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees
The Academy has an Induction and Development of Directors policy available from the Company Secretary.

The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend upon their existing experience but would always
include a tour of the Academy and a chance to meet staff and pupils. All Trustees are provided with copies of those
policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role
as Trustees. As there are normally only two or three new Trustees a year, induction tends to be done informally (but in
accordance with the Induction and Development of Directors policy) and is tailored specifically to the individual. New
Trustees are also encouraged to attend Babcock LDP’s training course for new governors.

There is a Trustees’ away day organised each year which includes training sessions to keep the Trustees updated on
relevant developments impacting on their roles and responsibilities.

Organisational Structure

The Board of Trustees meets at least four times a year. The Board establishes an overall framework for the governance
of the Academy and determines membership, terms of reference and procedures of Committees and other groups. It
receives reports including policies from its Committees for ratification. It monitors the activities of the Committees
through the minutes of their meetings. The Board may from time to time establish Working Groups to perform specific
tasks over a limited timescale.

In this period there were four main committees as follows;

. Resources Committee - this met at least twice a term and is responsible for monitoring, evaluating and reviewing
policy and performance in relation to financial management, compliance with reporting and regulatory requirements
and reporting, receiving reports from the internal auditors and drafting the annual budget including setting staffing
levels. The committee also deals with personnel matters, and will monitor, evaluate and review Academy policy,
practice and performance in relation to Personnel and staffing issues. The committee also deals with premises and
facilities issues, including Health and Safety matters and ICT.

. Standards Committees — one for the Secondary Phase, and one for the Primary Phase. These meet twice a term
to monitor, evaluate and review Academy policy, practice and performance in relation to curriculum planning,
communications, target setting and assessment, examinations and all pastoral issues.

. Strategic Planning Committee — this committee was formed to discuss strategic planning matters relating to the
future of the Academy and the schools within it. It has no delegated decision making powers, but makes
recommendations to the full Board as appropriate.

. Audit Committee — this committee was formed to deal with any necessary audit issues but has not had to convene
in this period.

In addition, committees are formed on an ad hoc basis where required to cover other matters such as Exclusions.

The following decisions are reserved to the Board of Trustees: to consider any proposals for changes to the status or
constitution of the Academy and its committee structure, to appoint or remove the Chairman and/or Vice Chairman, to
appoint the Executive Headteacher.

The Trustees are responsible for setting general policy, approving the Academy Improvement Plan and budget,
approving the statutory accounts, monitoring the Academy by the use of budgets and other data, and making major

decisions about the direction of the Academy, capital expenditure and senior staff appointments.

The members and Board of Trustees have devolved responsibility for day to day management of the Academy to the
Executive Headteacher and Senior Leadership Team (SLT). In 2016/17 the SLT comprised the Executive Headteacher,
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

1 Deputy Executive Headteacher, 1 Assistant Headteacher, 1 Early Years Leader, 1 SENCO, 1 Estates Manager and 1
Business Manager and 1 Operations Manager.

The SLT controls the Academy at an executive operational level, implementing the policies laid down by the Trustees
and reporting back to them.

Some spending control is devolved to Budget Holders, who are authorised in line with the Scheme of Delegation. The
Executive Headteacher is responsible for the appointment of staff.

The Academy Trust comprised four primary schools and one secondary school during this period. Each school is an
Academy in its own right forming part of the chain of academies within the Academy Trust, with a single Board of
Directors overseeing the whole academy chain.

The Executive Headteacher is the Accounting Officer.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Executive Head teacher must demonstrate sustained high quality of performance, with particular regard to
leadership, management and pupil progress and will be subject to a review of performance against their performance
objectives before any pay increase will be awarded. The clarification of the application of the criteria for Leadership
Group progression will be taken fully into account. No pay progression for this post is automatic. Any progression is
reviewed and agreed by Directors taking into account performance in role and national benchmarks including STPCD.

The Senior Leadership Team (SLT) must demonstrate sustained high quality of performance in respect of school
leadership and management and pupil progress and will be subject to a review of performance against their performance
objectives before any performance points will be awarded, if appropriate. The clarification of the application of the
criteria for Leadership Group progression will be taken fully into account. Annual pay progression within the pay range
for these posts is not automatic. Any progression will be by one point. The national leadership scales as agreed by all
unions in 2015 based on STPCD recommendations apply.

Connected Organisations, including Related Party Relationships
Chulmleigh Recreational Association, a registered charity, has use of the Academy's leisure facilities and there is a
shared use agreement between them and the Academy.

In addition to the four primary schools within the Academy, the Academy has strong collaborative links with five further
feeder primary schools. Links have also been formed with primary schools outside the transport area to facilitate
transition.

There are no related parties which either control or significantly influence the decisions and operations of Chulmleigh
Academy Trust. The Academy encourages strong communication links between the various parent and community
forum groups which are linked to individual schools. The Parents’ Advisory Group meets every term.

One of our trustees, Paul Osborne, took employment with the Key during the 2015/16 period, and continues in that
employment in this period. The Key is an advisory service for school leaders, and the Academy has been subscribing
to the Key continuously for some time, with the subscription preceding Mr Osborne’s connection with the Trust by
several years.

A subsidiary company, CAT Preschools Limited, was incorporated on 4 August 2014, with the Academy being the sole
member. The subsidiary has been formed with the purpose of carrying out the business of preschools at some of the
Academy’s schools. The new company had not commenced its business activity by the end of the year ending 31 August
2016, but the business of the unincorporated preschools was transferred to that company on 1 September 2016 and
operations commenced.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES
Objects and Aims

The principal object and activity of the Academy is to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom,
in particular by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a chain of schools offering a broad
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

range of curriculum for pupils of different abilities.

The aims of the Academy during the year ended 31 August 2017 are summarised below:

. to provide an outstanding education for each child in the Academy Trust

. to provide a broad and balanced curriculum, including extra-curricular activities.

. to develop students as more effective learners.

. to enhance the tertiary provision and outcomes.

. to develop the Academy sites so that they enable students to achieve their full potential.

. to ensure that every child enjoys fair access to a high quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition and care.

. to improve the effectiveness and sustainability of the Academy by keeping the curriculum and organisational
structure under continual review.

. to maximise the number of students who achieve 5 A* - C GCSE grades including English and Maths (or
equivalent in the new numbered system)

. to provide value for money for the funds expended.

. to develop greater coherence, clarity and effectiveness in school systems.

. to comply with all appropriate statutory and curriculum requirements.

. to develop the Academy's capacity to manage change, and

. to conduct the Academy's business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and openness.

At Chulmleigh Academy Trust, we aim to get the best for, and from, each child. We intend to enable each child to
realise his or her full academic, creative and physical potential and to develop positive social and moral values. Our
Academy is a community in which children, staff and parents are part of an environment where high aspiration and
standards are achieved as the result of the exemplary practice from the professionals in each of the schools.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
Key priorities for the year are contained in our Academy Improvement Plan which is available from the Admin Office
at the College.

Next year the priorities will be based around:

o Continuing to make the quality of teaching and learning our number one priority

e Ensuring that our guiding principles of Social Justice, Leadership, Pupil Achievement, High Standards,
Provision of a Variety of Activities and Financial Resilience inform our planning. Continuing to improve
levels of attainment and progress

Closing the gap between Pupil Premium pupils and non-Pupil Premium pupils

Taking opportunities to use our resources flexibly, in the best interests of the children and in a way that makes
best use of our freedoms as a group of academy schools

Spreading the outstanding practice within the schools

¢ Increasing pupil numbers in all the schools

Public Benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 17(5) of the Charities Act 2011 to have due
regard to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or duties. They have
referred to this guidance when reviewing the Academy's aims and objectives and in planning its future activities.

The Academy aims to advance for the public benefit education in Chulmleigh and the surrounding areas. In particular,
but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, by estimating, maintaining, managing and developing schools,

offering a broad curriculum for all.

The Academy provides facilities for recreational and other leisure time occupation for the community at large in the
interests of social welfare and with the interest of improving the life of the said community.
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)
STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievements and Performance

The Academy is in its sixth year of operation. The total number of pupils in the Academy at the end of the academic
year 2016/17 (summer term census 2017) was 888. This shows a slight increase when compared to summer 2016 when
the Academy Trust had 879 pupils on roll. An increasing number of pupils come to the College from outside the
designated transport area. This is facilitated by the provision of transport organised by the College.

Chulmleigh Academy Trust had 169 Pupil Premium children at the census date in January 2017. This represents 19.2%
of the total pupil population across the Trust. Most of the funding has been used to provide specialist staffing support:
other benefits have included support for music tuition, trips and travel.

During this period, the Directors made the decision to restructure the leadership team, with the removal of the assistant
headteacher role, the deputy executive headteacher (primary phase) role, and the Business Manager role, and
amendments to the Operations Manager’s role. Each primary school will have a Head of School, and the Business
Manager’s function will be divided between a Finance and Operations Manager and a Governance and Operations
Manager.

Chulmleigh Community College 2016-17

The 2016/17 exam results continued the upward trend of results with progress outcomes that place us as the third highest
performing school in Devon.

To maintain the upward trend in results we shall:

. Target resources and appraisal to improve outcomes for Pupil Premium pupils.
. Continue to focus on literacy with an Accelerated Reading Plan aimed at Years 6-10.
° Develop our use of Knowledge Organisers and centralised homework to all of key stage three.

. Focus on study skills.

. Continue to challenge all pupils to surpass their target grades with high aspiration for all.

. Build upon the success of Year 7 Catchup programmes in English and Maths and review the progress of targeted
pupils.

. Maintain a focus on the quality of marking and feedback by constantly reviewing this with Heads of Department.

. Maintain the high standards of discipline in the College.
Burrington Primary School

Burrington Primary School had a very low number of children on roll and the number was decreasing because there are
few children in the catchment. Following the 2015 autumn term census the Directors met and made a decision to close
the school if the number on roll did not increase to at least 30 children, with an even spread between KS1 and KS2.
The autumn census 2016 showed a reduced number of pupils on roll, having 21 in total, but with only 6 in KS1. The
number on roll continued to decline, and it was felt that there was no realistic prospect of the situation improving. The
Directors reviewed the situation in October 2016 and recommended a business case be submitted to the EFA (as it was
then) recommending the closure of the school in August 2017. The ESFA (as it is now) accepted the business case, and
the school closed on 31 August 2017.

Primaries 2016-17
All schools have been inspected during the past three years. CPS received an ‘Outstanding’ rating and the others were
graded ‘Good’. BPS and EWPS were re inspected under the new Ofsted Inspection guidance in the Summer term of

2017. Both schools were once again found to be Good.

Overall, the combined LPS, EWS and CPS cohort in the Year 6 Academy made good progress throughout the year
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

benefiting from the teaching input from the French, Music, Science, RE and History departments at CCC, and the expert
teaching and TA provision at CPS. The Year 6 Academy is now well established and already this current year, it has
been praised by parents from EWS and LPS who are very positive about the advantages of this transitional year.

Numbers are rising with heightened interest from prospective parents looking for their child’s future school. In most
cases, the students from EWS and LPS made good progress because of their past experience of excellent teaching in
their hub primaries followed by TA support, in Yr. 6. This year teachers increased their efforts to improve on last
year’s results. EWS combined scores were 62%, and therefore above national average, but this remains a focus for
the new Year 6 teachers and the KS2 co-ordinator in preparation for next year across the schools.

The Key Stage 1 team has strong supportive links across all the primaries through mentoring, planning, joint events
and assessment; there is a great security and strength in the staffing and set up at this phase of learning. The benefits of
the wider school team have impacted on teaching and learning, particularly the continued mentoring of less experienced
teachers and new teachers who had previously worked in isolation in the smaller schools. Strong leadership in support
in all preschools and EYFS has proved significant in the development of EYFS provision and its links to pre-school.

Lapford’s numbers on roll rose significantly in pre-school through the year due to the school’s good reputation,
consequently a third class was put in place from September 2016 to split the Year R and Year 1. This enabled teachers
to give focussed provision for children with very specific and challenging needs.

The Key Stage 2 team has established supportive working practices, with Upper and Lower Key Stage teachers working
together to share good practice across the schools.

Learning Support. Teaching Assistants continue to be one of our most valuable resources, contributing to quality
provision across all the schools. Each mixed aged class, in the small schools, had a full time TA to support differentiation
and to deliver interventions. The impact on learning and progress was significant, especially for those with emotional,
behavioural and other SEN needs. Chulmleigh Primary uses shared TAs in support of classes.

All staff have a designated foundation subject or SEN role across the primaries. They work in collaboration with both
external and internal CPD in support of our primary goals. This is very effective in sharing the demanding workload
and allowing subjects to have ‘Champions’ at the forefront of each subject highlighting its importance in curriculum
provision. In 2016/17 we introduced a new bespoke online assessment system so that monitoring and tracking
children’s progress is quick and simple and any anomalies in progress is highlighted. As well as this, a series of
termly tests for Maths and Reading was introduced so that monitoring of progress and identification of gaps was
rigorous and robust. A strong focus this year has been on presentation and marking in books. Regular book scrutinies
and moderation between teachers ensured that these remains at the forefront of our expectations.

Heads of Schools The role of the Head of School at the primaries is demanding and challenging but through the
outstanding quality of this team of leaders, the schools are effective and secure places of learning providing our students

with excellent educational provision in all respects.

Parents are supportive across the primary schools and volunteer in school; the PTAs are active in raising funds in
support of school events and needs.

Key Performance Indicators
The main financial performance indicator is the level of reserves held at the Balance Sheet date. In particular, the

management of spending against General Annual Grant (GAG) requires special attention. In the period under review,
the restricted fund balance of £158,606 was carried forward representing 3.7% of GAG.
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

The following KPIs for the secondary school were set at the start of the year:

Measure 2017 Initial Outcome FFT20 Target
A*/A (9-7) 24% 18%
Basics (Standard) 67% 80%
Basics (Good) 50% 48%
Ebacc (Standard) 33% 44%
Ebacc (Good) 31% 39%
Progress 8 +0.25 +0.20
Attainment 8 49.96 48.96

The Ebacc was extremely ambitious and difficult to gauge against schools nationally. We anticipate
that our Ebacc result will be comfortably in the top 10% nationally and of Devon Secondary schools.

We anticipate that the progress scores will put us very comfortably in the top 20% of schools nationally.

Chulmleigh Primary School EYFS Results 2017

. .. National in { Devon in
Reading Maths Writing GLD 2016 2016
70% 70% 70% 65%
*® 0, 0
CPS 1420) | 14200 | 1420y | (13120 68% 2%

Two children will repeat the year so their data has not been included.

Parents agree that they should repeat the year. Another child will also repeat the year but data

has been submitted.

Chulmleigh Primary School Phonic Screening Test 2017

Phonics Screening Test — National pass rate yr 1,2016 — 81%
National Data is not yet available

Yrl

Yr2

CPS 75%

67%

Phonics Screening Test SEN

Yrl

Yr2

CPS 33%

37%

Phonics Screening Test PP

Yrl

Yr2

CPS 75%

0%
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Chulmleigh Primary School KS1 SATs results Summer 2017

National Data is not yet available but these results were a vast improvement on the previous year —
especially from a cohort who only gained 57% Good Level of Development in their EYFS profiles.
GDS = Greater Depth

EXS= Expected

WT=Working towards

BLW= Below
Chulmleigh
Primary . PP(7) | SEN@) | SEN@)
School (30 GDS EXS WT BLW Disapplied EXS WT BEL
Pupils)
Readin 3/30 19/30 4/30 3/30 1/30 3/7 1/4 3/4
cading 10% 63% 13% 10% 3% 43% 25% 75%
Writi 4/30 15/30 6/30 4/30 1/30 3/7 4/4
riting 13% 50% 20% 13% 3% 43% 100%
Mathemati 1/30 21/30 4/30 3/30 1/30 3/7 1/4 3/4
athematics 3% 70% 13% 10% 3% 43% 25% 75%
Sci 23/30 6/30 1/30 4/7 4/4
clence 77% 20% 3% 57% 100%
Chulmleigh Primary School KS2 SATs results Summer 2017
National Chulmleigh . Not PP (4) PP (4) SEN (8) SEN
Achieved . . Not . (8)Not
. Achieved | Achieved . Achieved .
Primary Standard Standard | Standard Achieved Standard Achieved
School (35 Standard Standard
Pupils)
71% 22 13 2 2 5 3
Reading
63% 37% 50% 50% 63% 38%
77% 28 7 4 5 3
SPAG
80% 20% 100% 63% 38%
75% 25 10 1 3 4 4
Mathematics
1% 29% 25% 75% 50% 50%
61% 17 18 4 4 4
Combined
49% 51% 100% 50% 50%
GDS EXS
Writing 1 23
76% 3% 66%
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Progress measures: KS1 to KS2

Reading progress score (confidence

interval in brackets) 31(:5210-1.0)

% of eligible pupils included in the 100%
reading progress measure ’

Writing progress score (confidence

interval in brackets) 53 (7510-3.5)

% of eligible pupils included in the 100%
writing progress measure ?

Mathematics progress score

(confidence interval in brackets) 33(5210-14)

% of eligible pupils included in the

. 100%
mathematics progress measure

The results were below projections , but measures have been put in place for this year to ensure that current year 6s
will achieve higher results. The Trust is working Closely with North Devon Teaching School Alliance and will be
taking advantage of as much training and mentoring as staff have also visited Winkleigh Primary School to observe
the Year 6 teacher there and we will encourage peer to peer observations as well. We are now working closely with
the possible. Previously trained TAs at Lapford and East Worlington Primary Schools will be training TAs at
Chulmleigh to implement rigorous Intervention schemes such as Counting to Calculating and Mind the Gap.

Lapford Primary School EYFS Results 2017

. . National in | Devon in
Reading Maths Writing GLD 2016 2016
36% 36% 36% 36% 0 o
LPS (5/14) (5/14) Gnay | (514 68% 72%

Lapford Primary School Phonic Screening Test 2017

Phonics Screening Test — National pass rate yr 1,2016 — 81%
National Data is not yet available

Yrl Yr2
LPS 75% 66%

Phonics Screening Test SEN
Yrl Yr2
LPS 67% 100%
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Phonics Screening Test PP

Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Yrl

Yr2

LPS

100%

Lapford Primary School KS1 SATSs results Summer 2017

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Lapford
Primary . . PP (1) SEN (2) SEN(Q2) SEN(2)
School (7 GDS EXS WT BLW | Disapplied EXS EXP WT BEL
Pupils)
Readi 2/7 2/7 2/7 1 111 1/2 172
cacing 29% 29% 29% 14% 100% 50% 50%
Writi 4/7 2/7 1 0 172 172
ng 57% 29% 14% 0% 50% 50%
. 2/7 4/7 1 0 2/2
Mathematics | g, 57% 14% 0% 100%
Scie 2/7 4/7 1 0 0
clence 29% 57% 14% 0% 0%
Lapford Primary School KS2 SATSs results Summer 2017
. Achieved Achieved Achieved
Primary Standard Standard Standard Achieved Standard Achieved
School (11 Standard Standard
Pupils)
1% 9 2 2/3 1/3 0 1
Reading 82%
(GD 25%) (GD 18%) 18% 67% 33% 0% 100%
7% 9 2 3 0 0 1
SPAG 82%
(GD 30%) (GD 9%) 18% 100% 0% 0% 100%
75% 6 5 1/3 2/3 0 1
Mathematics 55%,
(GD 23%) (GD 9%) 45% 33% 67% 0% 100%
61% 5 6 1/3 2/3 0 1
Combined 46%
(GD 9%) 54% 33% 67% 0% 100%
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

GDS EXS
Writing 1 8

76%
(GD 18) 9%

2%

Progress measures: KS1 to KS2

Reading progress score (confidence

interval in brackets) 02(3910-3.5)

% of eligible pupils included in the

. 100%
reading progress measure

Writing progress score (confidence

interval in brackets) -32(-681004)

% of eligible pupils included in the

o 100%
writing progress measure

Mathematics progress score (confidence

interval in brackets) -39(-7.210-0.6)

% of eligible pupils included in the

) 100%
mathematics progress measure

We are content with the results, especially in our continuing high level of SPAG and Reading. Qur combined was
pulled down as a result of our maths scores and this has ultimately been addressed in the School Improvement Plan,
moderation and monitoring plans this academic year.

Some issue around statistical analysis are inherent to these results, including in Key Stage 1 a child suffering the loss
of a parent and the child who was disapplied moved to the school a month prior to the SATs.

We are working closely with North Devon Teaching School Alliance.

East Worlington Primary School EYFS Results 2017

. .. National in Devon in
Reading Maths Writing GLD 2016 2016
80% 80% 80% 80% o o
EWPs (4/5) (4/5) (4/5) (4/5) 68% 2%
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East Worlington Primary School Phonic Screening Test 2017

Phonics Screening Test — National pass rate yr 1,2016 —81%

Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

National Data is not yet available

Yrl

Yr2

EWS

83%

100%

Phonics Screening Test SEN

Yrl

Yr2

EWS

50%

100%

Phonics Screening Test PP

Yri

Yr2

EWS

0%

0%

East Worlington Primary School KS1 SATs results Summer 2017

East
Worlington
) L PP (1) | SENQ2) | SEN(2) | SEN(Q2)
Primary GDS EXS WwT BLW | Disapplied EXS EXS WT BEL
School (10
Pupils)
Readi 3/10 5/10 2/10 0/10 0/10 11 22
cading 30% 50% 20% 0% 0% 100% 100%
Writin 2/10 5/10 3/10 0/10 0/10 171 12 12
riting 20% 50% 30% 0% 0% 100% 50% 50%
12
) 3/10 6/10 1/10 0/10 0/10 0/1 : 12
Mathematics 30% 60% 10% 0% 0% 0% 5(%’ 50%
Sei 10/10 0/10 0/10 1/1 22
clence 100% 0% 0% 100% 100%
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report (continued)

East Worlington Primary School KS2 SATs results Summer 2017

. East
National Worlington . Not PP (2) PP (2) SEN (3) SEN
Achieved . . Not . (3)Not
. Achieved Achieved . Achieved .
Primary Standard Standard | Standard Achieved Standard Achieved
School (13 n Standard Standard
Pupils)
71% 9 4 0 2 0 3
o Reading 69% . . . . .
(GD 25%) (GD 23%) 37% 0% 100% 0% 100%
77% 7 6 0 2 0 3
SPAG 54% V] 0 0, 0, 0,
(GD 30%) (GD 23%) 46% 0% 100% 0% 100%
5% 10 3 1 1 1 2
Mathematics 77% o ) . . .
(GD 23%) (GD 30%) 23% 50% 50% 34% 77%
61% 8 5 2 0 3
Combined 62% . . . .
(GD 9%) (GD 8%) 38% 100% 0% 100%
GDS EXS
Writing 2 9
76% 15%
(GD 18) 69%

Progress measures: KS1 to KS2

Reading progress score (confidence

interval in brackets) 2:3(-6.010-1.0)

% of eligible pupils included in the

. 100%
reading progress measure

Writing progress score (confidence

interval in brackets) 58 (9.1 t0-2.5)

% of eligible pupils included in the

o 100%
writing progress measure

Mathematics progress score

(confidence interval in brackets) 2.6 (-58100.6)

% of eligible pupils included in the

. 100%
mathematics progress measure

We were pleased with the improvement in the KS2 statistics which put EWS at above national average for average
point score in all 3 tests, for Maths both in greater depth and expected. For all other areas our percentages were
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within 1 child of the averages. Our greater depth for maths was significantly above national average which reflects
our work on this from our previous OFSTED.

Steps taken to mitigate the absence for the year 2s and year s helped significantly in achieving results that were
above national average across the board.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Review

Most of the Academy's income is obtained from the DfE via the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which
is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE during the year ended 31 August 2017 and the
associated expenditure are shown as Restricted Funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Academy also receives grants for fixed assets from the DfE which are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities
as restricted income in the Fixed Asset Fund. The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation
charges over the useful life of the assets concerned, as defined in the Academy’s accounting policies.

During the year ended 31 August 2017, total expenditure (excluding restricted fixed assets funds and pensions reserves)
of £5,194,796 was covered by recurrent grant funding from the DfE, together with other incoming resources of
£5,308,346 The excess of income over expenditure for the year excluding restricted fixed asset funds and pensions
reserves was £113,550. The reported income over expenditure is attributable to; Chulmleigh Academy Trust £3 8,873
and CAT Preschools Limited £74,677.

At 31 August 2017 the net book value of fixed assets was £13,959,274 and movements in tangible fixed assets are
shown in the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the associated support
services to the pupils of the Academy.

The balance of the former school's budget shares was transferred across on conversion and is shown as Unrestricted
Funds.

The Academy has taken on the deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme in respect of its non-teaching staff
transferred on conversion. The deficit is incorporated within the Statement of Financial Activity with details in Note 25
to the financial statements.

Key financial policies adopted or reviewed during the year include the Finance Policy which lays out the framework
for financial management, including financial responsibilities of the Board, Executive Headteacher, managers, budget
holders and other staff, as well as delegated authority for spending, and other key policies such as Child Protection, ICT
and SEND policies were reviewed and updated.

Reserves Policy

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Academy annually. This review encompasses the nature of income and
expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. The Trustees take into
consideration the future plans of the Academy, the uncertainty over future income streams and other key risks identified
during the risk review.

The Trustees have determined that the appropriate level of free cash reserves should be £300,000. The reason for this
is to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion
to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance. The Academy’s current level of reserves (total funds
less the amount held in fixed assets and restricted funds) is £651,156, of which £492,550 is free reserves. The reported
free reserves are attributable to; Chulmleigh Academy Trust £417,892; and CAT Preschools Limited £74,658.
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The defined benefit pension scheme reserve has a negative balance. The effect of the deficit position of the pension
scheme is that the Academy Trust is paying higher employers’ pension contributions over a period of years. The higher
employers’ pension contributions will be met from the Academy Trust’s budgeted annual income. Whilst the deficit
will not be immediately eliminated, there should be no actual cash flow deficit on the fund, nor any direct impact on
the free reserves of the academy Trust.

Investment Policy
All funds surplus to immediate requirements may be invested in accordance with the Academy’s Investment Policy
Statement, a copy of which is available from the Company Secretary.

Due to the nature of funding, the Academy may at times hold cash balances surplus to its short term requirements. The
Trustees have authorised the opening of additional short term bank investment accounts or invested in individual fixed
income securities such as Certificates of Deposit, U.K Treasury Bonds, and other similar instruments with an average
duration of less than one year to take advantage of higher interest rates. No other form of investment is authorised.

Trustees are committed to ensuring that all funds under their control are managed in such a way as to maximise return
whilst minimising risk. Any investment shall therefore be with providers covered by the Financial Services
Compensation Scheme. Day to day management of the surplus funds is delegated to the Executive Headteacher and
Business Manager in accordance with the Academy’s Investment Policy Statement

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Board of Trustees has reviewed the major risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy are as follows:

Financial - the Academy has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the ESFA. In the last
year virtually all of the Academy's incoming resources were ultimately Government funded. More than 90% of funding
is based on pupil numbers, and there is no assurance that Government policy or practice will remain the same or that
public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms. Fairer Funding has now been delayed and the
Trust will not receive any benefit from this until 2018 at the earliest.

Pupil Numbers - Funding where over 90% is dependent on pupil numbers with no protection for small schools is a risk
for the Trust. The College remains very popular but sparsity results in an insufficient number of students from the
designated transport area. This risk has been reviewed and the Trust has taken the decision to invest in the provision
of transport option for families outside the designated transport area. Initiatives to counter the low pupil numbers
include a comprehensive marketing campaign including direct mailing, building relationships with primary schools in
other areas and attendance at county fairs. This has proven to be an effective approach, and numbers have grown at the
College

Failures in governance and/or management - the risk in this area arises from potential failure to effectively manage the
Academy's finances, internal controls, compliance with regulations and legislation, statutory returns, etc. The Trustees
continue to review and ensure that appropriate measures are in place to mitigate these risks.

Reputational - the continuing success of the Academy is dependent on continuing to attract pupils/students in sufficient
numbers by maintaining the highest educational standards. To mitigate this risk Trustees ensure that student success
and achievement are closely monitored and reviewed.

Safeguarding and child protection - the Trustees continue to ensure that the highest standards are maintained in the
areas of selection and monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policies and procedures, health & safety and
discipline.

Staffing - the success of the Academy is reliant on the quality of its staff and so the Trustees monitor and review policies

and procedures to ensure continued development and training of staff as well as ensuring there is clear succession
planning.
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Fraud and mismanagement of funds - The Academy has appointed an internal auditor to carry out checks on financial
systems and records as required by the Academy Financial Handbook. All finance staff receive training to keep them
up to date with financial practice requirements and develop their skills in this area.

The Academy has continued to strengthen its risk management process throughout the year by improving the process
and ensuring staff awareness. A risk register is maintained and reviewed and updated on a regular basis. The ten most
significant risks (with mitigating factors) are revised each term and discussed with the Trustees.

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS

The Academy will continue to strive to provide outstanding education and improve the levels of performance of its
pupils at all levels. The Academy will continue to aim to attract high quality teachers and support staff in order to
deliver its objectives.

The Academy will continue to work with primary schools from the designated transport area, as well as those outside
it, to improve the educational opportunities for students in the wider community.

Full details of our plans for the future are given in our Academy Improvement Plan, which is available from the
Company Secretary.

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS
The Academy and its Trustees do not act as the Custodian Trustees of any other Charity.

AUDITORS
In so far as the Trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware; and
. the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The decision to appoint Thompson Jenner was made by the full Board following a best value tender.

Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as company directors, on
and signed on the board's behalf by:

Stephen Baber
Chair of Trustees

12712/ 7
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Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Chulmleigh Academy Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to M E Johnson, as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Chulmleigh Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to
the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the and in the Statement of
Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 5 times during the year. Attendance during
the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Meetings Out of a
Trustee attended possible
S C Baber 5 5
L A Eadie 2 5
K A Greenwood 4 5
M E Johnson 5 5
T J C Newman 5 5
P K Osborne 4 5
M S Twyble 3 S
M J White 5 5
P K Winter 3 5
D J Worden 5 5

The Board of Trustees consider that there is currently a good balance of skills on the Board, though the Trustees
hope to strengthen HR and financial expertise. One trustee resigned in this period and none were appointed; the
Board currently has three vacancies, which it is taking steps to fill with appropriately skilled individuals.
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The Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to consider the
matters within its remit, including budgetary and financial matters, and to consider the internal auditor’s reports

During the year Lisa Eadie resigned her post as a teacher, and accordingly her role as staff director
automatically terminated on 31 August 2017 when her employment came to an end. Attendance at meetings
during the year was as follows:

Meetings Out of a
Trustee attended possible
S C Baber 5 5
L A Eadie 2 5
K A Greenwood 3 5
D J Worden 2 S
P K Osborne - 4 5
P K Winter 2 5
M E Johnson 5 5

The Audit Committee is also a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. There were no audit related issues
in the period 1 September 2016 to 31 August 2017 and the committee was therefore not required to convene any
meetings.

Review of value for money

As accounting officer the trustee has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has delivered
improved value for money during the year by:

« At the College, Phase 3 of the building works has continued and is nearing completion. Together with yet
another year’s excellent GCSE results, the new building continues to present the school as an attractive option
to prospective parents, which is reflected in the increased admission from out of area students. Achieving best
value from the funds available continues to be a constant focus.

« Opportunities to make further savings have been considered whenever possible, and the reserves at the end of
2016/17 showed a significantly more positive position than forecast at the start of the period.

- Historically, budget formulas have recognised that small schools cost more to run per pupil than larger
schools. The current formula does not take account of this: more than 90% of school funding being based on
pupil numbers. Increasing the number of students on roll has therefore been a key issue to build sustainability.
The results in the secondary school were yet again outstanding and transport has been provided from areas out
of normal catchment to enable more students to attend the College.

« In 2016 the Board of Trustees resolved to close Burrington Primary School on 31 August 2017 unless pupil
numbers increased sufficiently to provide for the future educational viability of the school. This decision was
made because of a significant decline in numbers which was projected to continue. Every effort was made to
ensure the school’s future viability but at the October 2016 census numbers on roll had fallen to 21 with a
further reduced roll by 2020. The Trustees therefore confirmed their decision to recommend the closure of
Burrington School with effect from 31 August 2017, and the ESFA subsequently accepted the business case,
resulting in the closure of the school on 31 August 2017.
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* The funds deficit at Lapford Primary School has been agreed because the Trustees are assured that the school
has the capacity to grow.

* At the end of the financial year 2016/17, East Worlington Primary School reported a small funds deficit.
There are plans and proposals which will be presented to directors to introduce a before and after-school club.

* The leadership structure at the Trust has been reviewed by the Directors, and from 1 September 2017 a more
cost effective structure has been implemented, most notably with the removal of a Deputy Executive
Headteacher (primary phase) and Business Manager. The primary schools are now directly managed by their
own Heads of School, who report to the Executive Headteacher, and the Business Manager’s role has been
divided between a Finance and Operations Manager and a Governance and Operations Manager.

» The financial pressures facing the Trust have been reported and considered. The Trustees will continue to
explore strategic opportunities to work with other schools and Trusts, both to share expertise and to strengthen
the financial viability of the Trust and to strive for a fair political decision via MPs.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Chulmleigh Academy Trust for
the year ended 31 August 2017 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year ending 31 August 2017 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Trustees.

The risk and control framework

The Academy Trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

+ comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

¢ regular reviews by the Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

* setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

» clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
+ delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

* identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint
Griffin Chartered Accountants as internal auditors.
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The internal auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Academy Trust’s financial systems. The auditor reports to the Resources Committee on the operation of the
systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’ financial responsibilities.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of
internal control by the Resources Committee and a plan to address any weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

From the 1 September 2017, the Resources Committee will be renamed ‘Business and Finance Committee’ to
reflect the strategic role it plays in developing and monitoring the business and finances of the Trust.

There were no material control or other issues reported by the Responsible Officer to date.

Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, M E Johnson has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

» the work of the internal auditor ;
« the work of the external auditor;
« the financial management and governance self assessment process;

« the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of
internal control by the Finance and General Purposes Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is in place.

S CBaber
Trustee

M E Jofinson
Accounting officer
Trustee
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting Officer of Chulmleigh Academy Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the
Academy Trust Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding
agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2016.

I confirm that I and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2016.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the
Board of Trustees and ESFA.

N e v

M E Johnson
Accounting officer

Datel?—/‘Z/‘?
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Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees (who act as the governors of Chulmleigh Academy Trust Academy Trust and are also the directors
of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees” Report
and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction published by the Education and
Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

«  observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2016
to 2017,

+ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards [FRS 102] have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for
the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

S C Baber
Trustee
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Chulmleigh Academy Trust (the 'Academy’ ) and its subsidiaries
(the 'Group') for the year ended 31 August 2017, which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure Account, Consolidated Balance Sheet, Balance Sheet,
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice), including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland".

This report is made solely to the charitable parent company's Trustees, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Group's
trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
parent company and its trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

In our opinion the financial statements:

* give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group's and parent Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2017 and of
the Group's results for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

* the Trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

+ the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the Trustees' Report (incorporating the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report)
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements; and

« the Trustees' Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent Academy and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Annual Report and the
Financial Statements.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Academy, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
+ certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities [set out on page 23], the Trustees are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent
Academy's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent
Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Trustees.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's or the parent Academy's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group or the parent Academy to cease to continue as a going
concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we idengify during our audit.

Simon Lewis (Sefior/Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of/Thompson Jenner LLP, Statutory Auditor
i

28 Alexandra Te r?]ce
Exmouth /
Devon

EX8 IBD

Date:...(.&l.‘f.‘.—.’..ﬂ .......
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to Chulmleigh Academy
Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 18 August 2017 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to
2017, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Chulmleigh Academy Trust during the period 1 September 2016 to 31 August 2017
have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Chulmleigh Academy Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we may state to Chulmleigh Academy Trust and the
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Chulmleigh Academy Trust and the
ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Board of Trustees's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of the Board of Trustees's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 August 2011 and the Academies Financial Handbook extant
from 1 September 2016, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year from | September 2016 to 31 August 2017 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion have been designed to comply with the requirements set out in
The Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 and includes:

« Inspection and review of documentation providing evidence of governance procedures
« Evaluation of the systems of internal controls for authorisation and approval

« Performing substantive tests on relevant transactions
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to Chulmleigh Academy
Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2016 to 31 August 2017 has not

Simon Lewis
For and on behalf of Thompson Jenner LLP, Chartered Accountants

28 Alexandra Ter
Exmouth

Devon

EXS8 1BD

Date:...‘.%[ ﬂJ \7 .........
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2017
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Note

Income and endowments from:

Donations and capital grants 2

Charitable activities:

Funding for the Academy
trust's educational operations

3
Other trading activities 4
Investments 5
Income from preschools 6

Total

Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7

Charitable activities:

Academy trust educational
operations

Preschools expenditure
Total
Net income/(expenditure)

Other recognised gains and
losses

Actuarial gains on defined
benefit pension schemes 27

Net movement in
funds/(deficit)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds/(deficit) brought
forward at 1 September 2016

Total funds/(deficit) carried
forward at 31 August 2017

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds 2017
£ £ £ £
- 111,657 36,112 147,769
265,478 4,721,309 - 4,986,787
14,379 - - 14,379
6,412 - - 6,412
189,111 - - 189,111
475,380 4,832,966 36,112 5,344,458
30,509 - - 30,509
253,032 5,086,821 942,598 6,282,451
114,434 - - 114,434
397,975 5,086,821 942,598 6,427,394
77,405 (253,855) (906,486) (1,082,936)
- 709,000 - 709,000
77,405 455,145 (906,486) (373,936)
415,145 (3,415,539) 14,997,794 11,997,400
492,550 (2,960,394) 14,091,308 11,623,464
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2016

(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds 2016
Note £ £ £ £
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 2 - 152,584 37,447 190,031
Charitable activities:
Funding for the Academy
trust's educational operations 3 288,723 4,690,527 - 4,979,250
Other trading activities 4 25,835 - - 25,835
Investments 5 12,764 - - 12,764
Total 327,322 4,843,111 37,447 5,207,880
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7 30,975 - - 30,975
Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational
operations 250,444 4,838,717 835,476 5,924,637
Preschools expenditure 19 - - 19
Total 281,438 4,838,717 835,476 5,955,631
Net income/(expenditure) 45,884 4,394 (798,029) (747,751)
Other recognised gains and
losses
Actuarial gains on defined
benefit pension schemes 27 - (1,346,000) - (1,346,000)
Net movement in
funds/(deficit) 45,884 (1,341,606) (798,029) (2,093,751)
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds/(deficit) brought
forward at 1 September 2015 369,261 (2,073,933) 15,795,823 14,091,151
Total funds/(deficit) carried
forward at 31 August 2016 415,145 (3,415,539) 14,997,794 11,997,400
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

(Registration number: 07697698)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2017

2017 2016
Note £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 13,959,274 13,775,130
Current assets
Stocks 15 21,355 5,184
Debtors 16 322,419 401,905
Cash at bank and in hand 984,612 1,739,278
1,328,386 2,146,367
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 17 (495,196) (352,763)
Net current assets 833,190 1,793,604
Total assets less current liabilities 14,792,464 15,568,734
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 18 (50,000) (33,334)
Net assets excluding pension liability 14,742,464 15,535,400
Pension scheme liability 27 (3,119,000) (3,538,000)
Net assets including pension liability 11,623,464 11,997,400
Funds of the Academy:
Restricted funds
Restricted general fund 158,606 122,461
Restricted fixed asset fund 14,091,308 14,997,794
Restricted pension fund (3,119,000) (3,538,000)
11,130,914 11,582,255
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general fund 417,892 415,164
Other unrestricted fund 74,658 (19)
492,550 415,145
Total funds 11,623,464 11,997,400

The financial statements on pages 29 to 58 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on
and signed on their behalf by:

S C Baber
Trustee
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

(Registration number: 07697698)
Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2017

2017 2016
Note £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 13,959,274 13,775,130
Current assets
Stocks 15 21,355 5,184
Debtors 16 319,300 401,905
Cash at bank and in hand 912,101 1,739,122
1,252,756 2,146,211

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 17 (494,224) (352,588)
Net current assets 758,532 1,793,623
Total assets less current liabilities 14,717,806 15,568,753
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 18 (50,000) (33,334)
Net assets excluding pension liability 14,667,806 15,535,419
Pension scheme liability 27 (3,119,000) (3,538,000)
Net assets including pension liability 11,548,806 11,997,419
Funds of the Academy:
Restricted funds
Restricted general fund 158,606 122,461
Restricted fixed asset fund 14,091,308 14,997,794
Restricted pension fund (3,119,000) (3,538,000)

11,130,914 11,582,255
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general fund 417,892 415,164
Total funds 11,548,806 11,997,419

The financial statements were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 12/'2'//? and signed on
their behalf by:

Trustee
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 August 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August
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2017 2016
Note £ £
23 329,552 941,670
24 (1,084,218) (607,288)
(754,666) 334,382
1,739,278 1,404,896
25 984,612 1,739,278




Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2017

1 Accounting policies

Statement of accounting policies
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006.

Chulmleigh Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102,

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from
the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material
uncertainties about the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and its sole
subsidiary undertaking. These are adjusted, where appropriate, to conform to group accounting policies. As a
consolidated group profit and loss account is published, a separate profit and loss account for the parent
company is omitted from the group financial statements by virtue of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance
sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not
unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred
income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received,
the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of
capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised
when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement
of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related
conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the
receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other
trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading activities’ and
the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to fair value the
items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are
sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’.

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this
reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from
donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over
the useful economic life in accordance with the Academy Trusts accounting policies.

Donated fixed assets

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this
reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from
donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over
the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust‘s accounting policies.
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up
of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct
costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more
than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time
spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust’s educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets
Assets costing £250 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful
economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the
asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and
carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with
unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the
cost of each asset on a straight-line/reducing balance basis over its expected useful lives, per the table below.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they
are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Activities.

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Long term leasehold property 2% straight line

Motor vehicles 25% reducing balance

Furniture and equipment 20% straight line

Computer equipment 33% straight line
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can
be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to
settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of
the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at
the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Stock
Unsold uniforms and catering stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Taxation
The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph | Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the
Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.
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Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Pension benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (‘TPS’)
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes. The TPS is an
unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working
lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current
and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of
quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As stated in the notes to the financial statements,
the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit
accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust in separate
trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of
return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial
valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to
operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes,
settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost
on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair
value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The
difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is
recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education/sponsor/other funders where the asset acquired

or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note x, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has
been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2017. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability.

Subsidiary undertaking

The financial statements include the results of CAT Preschools Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary. Further
details of the subsidiary and its results are set out in note 14. Profits generated by the subsidiary will be passed
to the Academy via gift aid.

2 Donations and capital grants

Restricted
Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds 2017 2016
£ £ £ £

Educational trips and visits 91,142 - 91,142 40,016
Capital grants - 33,112 33,112 33,134
Other donations 20,515 3,000 23,515 116,881
111,657 36,112 147,769 190,031
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

3 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

DfE/ESFA revenue grants
General annual grant
Other DFE/EFA grants

Other government
grants

High needs
Other government grants non capital

Non-government
grants and other income

Internal catering income
Sales to students

Total grants

4 Other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Other sales

5 Investment income

Short term deposits

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
- 4,307,300 4,307,300 4,276,464
- 216,743 216,743 210,806
- 4,524,043 4,524,043 4,487,270
- 82,434 82,434 120,890
- 84,888 84,888 82,367
- 167,322 167,322 203,257
251,968 - 251,968 250,456
13,510 29,944 43,454 38,267
265,478 29,944 295,422 288,723
265,478 4,721,309 4,986,787 4,979,250
Unrestricted Total Total
funds 2017 2016
£ £ £
8,529 8,529 17,549
5,850 5,850 8,286
14,379 14,379 25,835
Unrestricted Total Total
funds 2017 2016
£ £ £
6,412 6,412 12,764
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

6 Other charitable activities

Income from preschools

7 Expenditure

Expenditure on
raising funds

Academy's
educational
operations

Direct costs

Allocated support
costs

Preschools
expenditure

Direct costs

Allocated support
costs

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets

Fees payable to auditor - audit

- other audit services

Unrestricted Total Total
funds 2017 2016
£ £ £
189,111 189,111 -
Non Pay Expenditure
Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other costs 2017 2016
£ £ £ £ £
- - 30,509 30,509 30,975
3,167,928 256,550 434,435 3,858,913 3,906,422
972,531 917,521 533,486 2,423,538 2,018,215
94,936 - 10,054 104,990 -
- 3,505 5,939 9,444 19
4,235,395 1,177,576 1,014,423 6,427,394 5,955,631
2017 2016
£ £
316,728 397,763
23,441 17,520
6,000 6,000
1,500 1,500
625,870 437,713

(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

8 Charitable activities

Direct costs - educational operations
Support costs - educational operations

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs
Depreciation

Technology costs
Premises costs

Other support costs
Governance costs

Total support costs

9 Staff

Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were:
Wages and salaries
Social security costs

Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes

Supply staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Total Total
2017 2016
£ £
3,963,903 3,906,422
2,432,982 2,018,234
6,396,885 5,924,656
Educational Total Total
operations Preschools 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
972,531 - 972,531 668,776
686,048 - 686,048 512,598
113,185 - 113,185 127,144
231,473 3,505 234,978 285,648
388,240 5,939 394,179 326,633
32,061 - 32,061 97,435
2,423,538 9,444 2,432,982 2,018,234
2017 2016
£ £
3,041,230 2,870,696
259,486 207,867
716,338 531,355
4,017,054 3,609,918
91,446 162,779
126,895 8,602
4,235,395 3,781,299
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

9 Staff (continued)

Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows:

2017 2016
No No
Charitable Activities
Teachers 57 56
Administration and support 103 92
Management 3 3
163 151
Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose emoluments exceeded £60,000 was:
2017 2016
No No
£70,001 - £80,000 1 1
£90,001 - £100,000 1 -
£100,001 - £110,000 1 -

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by
key management personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £517,354 (2013: £405,521).
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

10 Central services

The Academy Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:
* Human resources

« Financial services

* Legal and professional services

+ Educational support services

« Catering services

The trust charges for these services on the following basis:

Central costs are split between academies on a percentage based on pupil numbers and High Needs distribution:
* Chulmleigh Community College - 60%

* Chulmleigh Primary School - 22%

+ East Worlington Primary School - 6%

* Burrington Primary School - 6%

+ Lapford Primary School - 6%

Catering costs are split on the following percentages:
* Chulmleigh Community College - 65% (2016: 65%)
* Chulmleigh Primary School - 18% (2016: 18%)

* East Worlington Primary School - 3% (2016: 3%)

* Burrington Primary School - 3% (2016: 3%)

» Lapford Primary School - 11% (2016: 11%)

11 Related party transactions - trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the
Academy Trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they
provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment, and not in
respect of their role as trustees. The value of trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

M E Johnson (Headteacher):

Remuneration: £75,000 - £80,000 (2016 - £75,000 - £80,000)
Employer’s pension contributions: £10,000 - £15,000 (2016 - £5,000 - £10,000)

L A Eadie (Staff Trustee):

Remuneration: £40,000 - £45,000 (2016 - £40,000 - £45,000)
Employer’s pension contributions: £5,000 - £10,000 (2016 - £5,000 - £10,000)

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in note 28.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

12 Trustees' and officers' insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy has purchased insurance to protect trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy business. The
insurance provides cover up to £1,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year ended 31 August 2017 was
£371 (2016 - £895).

The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost.

13 Tangible fixed assets

Group and company

Leasehold

land and Furniture and Motor Computer

buildings equipment vehicles equipment Total

£ £ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 September 2016 14,720,048 389,777 25,470 269,417 15,404,712
Additions 989,488 91,803 - 45,451 1,126,742
Disposals (667,032) - - - (667,032)
At 31 August 2017 15,042,504 481,580 25,470 314,868 15,864,422
Depreciation
At 1 September 2016 1,024,797 320,642 14,726 269,417 1,625,582
Charge for the year 246,917 52,261 2,686 14,864 316,728
Eliminated on
disposals (41,162) - - - (41,162)
At 31 August 2017 1,230,552 372,903 17,412 284,281 1,905,148
Net book value
At 31 August 2017 13,811,952 108,677 8,058 30,587 13,959,274
At 31 August 2016 13,695,251 69,135 10,744 - 13,775,130

Page 45



Chulmleigh Academy Trust
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14 Investments

Group and company

CAT Preschools Limited, a company incorporated in England and Wales and limited by guarantee is a
subsidiary of the Academy with the Academy being the sole member. The company was formed with the
purpose of carrying out the business of preschool at some of the Academy's schools. Turnover for the year
ended 31 August 2017 was £189,111, expenditure was £114,434 and the profit/(loss) for the year was £74,677.
The assets of the company at 31 August 2017 were £75,630, liabilities were £972 and capital and reserves were
£74,658.

15 Stock
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Books and stationery 16,171 - 16,171 -
Catering 5,184 5,184 5,184 5,184
21,355 5,184 21,355 5,184
16 Debtors
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Trade debtors 35,359 34,291 32,240 34,291
VAT recoverable 81,320 126,140 81,320 126,140
Prepayments and accrued income 205,740 241,474 205,740 241,474
322,419 401,905 319,300 401,905
17 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Trade creditors 68,683 80,352 68,611 80,352
Other taxation and social security 65,917 60,850 65,917 60,850
Other creditors 13,203 19,673 13,203 19,498
Accruals 211,505 94,556 210,605 94,556
Deferred income 76,650 38,438 76,650 38,438
Pension scheme creditor 59,238 58,894 59,238 58,894
495,196 352,763 494,224 352,588
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17 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (continued)

2017
£
Deferred income
Deferred income at 1 September 2016 38,438
Resources deferred in the period 76,650
Amounts released from previous periods (38,438)
Deferred income at 31 August 2017 76,650

At the balance sheet date the Academy was holding funds recieved in advance in relation to grant income and
trip income.

18 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Other creditors 50,000 33,334 50,000 33,334

Included within other creditors is a loan of £50,000 from the Education Funding Agency which is provided on
the following terms: The loan is repayable on a monthly basis over 3 years. Interest at 1.69% per annum is
charged on the balance of the loan. As of yet the date of the first repayment has not been set and no interest will
be charged untill repayments are being made.
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19 Funds
Group

Restricted general funds
General annual grant (GAG)
Other government grants
Other DFE/EFA grants
High needs

Donations

Other sales

Restricted fixed asset funds

Fixed asset transferred on
conversion

Fixed asset purchased from GAG
DfE/EFA capital grants
Maintenance fund grant

Other restricted asset fund

Restricted pension funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general funds
Other unrestricted funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total funds

Balance at 1 Gains, Balance at
September Incoming Resources losses and 31 August
2016 resources expended transfers 2017
£ £ £ £ £

80,885 4,307,300 (4,229,579) - 158,606
41,576 84,888 (126,464) - -

- 216,743 (216,743) - -

- 82,434 (82,434) - -

- 111,657 (111,657) - -

- 29,944 (29,944) - -

122,461 4,832,966 (4,796,821) - 158,606
8,387,928 - (754,309) - 7,633,619
230,337 - - - 230,337
200,976 33,112 47911) - 186,177
6,154,505 3,000 (140,093) - 6,017,412
24,048 - (285) - 23,763
14,997,794 36,112 (942,598) - 14,091,308
(3,538,000) - (290,000) 709,000 (3,119,000)
11,582,255 4,869,078 (6,029,419) 709,000 11,130,914
415,164 286,269 (283,541) - 417,892
(19) 189,111 (114,434) - 74,658
415,145 475,380 (397,975) - 492,550
11,997,400 5,344,458 (6,427,394) 709,000 11,623,464
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19 Funds (continued)

Company

Restricted general funds
General annual grant (GAG)
Other government grants
Other DFE/EFA grants
High needs

Donations

Other sales

Restricted fixed asset funds

Fixed asset transferred on
conversion

Fixed asset purchased from GAG
DfE/EFA capital grants
Maintenance fund grant

Other restricted asset fund

Restricted pension funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general funds

Total funds

Balance at 1 Gains, Balance at
September Incoming Resources losses and 31 August
2016 resources expended transfers 2017
£ £ £ £ £

80,885 4,307,300 (4,229,579) - 158,606
41,576 84,888 (126,464) - -

- 216,743 (216,743) - -

- 82,434 (82,434) - -

- 111,657 (111,657) - -

- 29,944 (29,944) - -

122,461 4,832,966 (4,796,821) - 158,606
8,387,928 - (754,309) - 7,633,619
230,337 - - - 230,337
200,976 33,112 47,911) - 186,177
6,154,505 3,000 (140,093) - 6,017,412
24,048 - (285) - 23,763
14,997,794 36,112 (942,598) - 14,091,308
(3,538,000) - (290,000) 709,000 (3,119,000)
11,582,255 4,869,078 (6,029,419) 709,000 11,130,914
415,164 286,269 (283,541) - 417,892
11,997,419 5,155,347 (6,312,960) 709,000 11,548,806
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19 Funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant - Income from the EFA which is to be used for the normal running costs of the Academy,
including education and support costs.

Other DfE/EFA Grants - This represents other various income received from the DfE/EFA with restrictions.
Other Government Grants - This represents other various income received with restrictions.

Other Restricted Donations - This represents general donations to be used for the normal running of the
Academy, including education and support costs and educational trip income.

Pension Reserve - The represents the Academy's share of the assets and liabilities in the Local Government
Pension Scheme. As with most pension schemes this is currently in deficit due to an excess of scheme liabilities
over scheme assets which was inherited on conversion to an academy. The Academy is following the
recommendations of the actuary to reduce the deficit by making additional contributions over a number of years.

Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2017 were allocated as follows:

Total
£
Chulmleigh Community College 607,645
Chulmleigh Primary School 132,249
East Worlington Primary School (8,062)
Lapford Primary School (155,334)
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 576,498
Fixed asset transferred on conversion 14,091,308
Pension reserve (3,119,000)
Total 11,548,806
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19 Funds (continued)
Lapford Primary School is carrying a net deficit of £155,334 on these funds because:

Lapford Primary School is carrying a deficit because when it joined the Academy Trust it was in a deficit
position with standards that needed to be addressed.

The trust is taking the following action to return the academy to surplus:

Lapford Community Primary School joined the Trust in 2012 with a deficit reserves position and a pupil roll
which had been falling because confidence in the school was low. Standards were poor, but following a
restructure and a sustained programme of interventions, confidence has grown and the number on roll is steadily
rising. Changing the perceptions of families can be a slow process and confidence in the school was not entirely
evident until 2015.

The school is situated in a comparatively large village (for North Devon) where rurality and distance to any
centres for support, results in a high level of social deprivation. The school is therefore a vital part of this
community, fulfilling the needs that are not otherwise available.

The numbers on roll at Lapford preschool rose significantly due to the school’s good reputation, consequently a
third class was put in place from September 2016 to split the Year R and Year !.

The Trust made the decision to invest its reserves to return Lapford Community Primary School to a surplus
position by 2020.

East Worlington Primary School is carrying a net deficit of £8,062 on these funds because:

East Worlington Primary School is a smali rural school and a school of choice for many parents, due to its
reputation and high standards. The numbers at the school have recently declined mainly due to a very large Y6
cohort leaving and a small Reception intake.

The trust is taking the following action to return the academy to surplus:

The School has recently appointed a Head of School who is continuing to raise standards and is aiming to
provide working parents with wrap around care.

Furthermore, the National Funding Formula will result in a significant boost in funds to both schools, as they are
directed towards the least well-funded schools and rural schools.
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19 Funds (continued)

Analysis of academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Chulmleigh
Community
College

East Worlington
Primary School

Lapford Primary
School

Chulmleigh
Primary School

Burrington
Primary School

Central services

Academy Trust

Teaching
and
Educational Other Other Costs
Support Support Educational  (excluding Total Total
Staff Costs  Staff Costs  Supplies Depreciation) 2017 2016
£ £ £ £ £ £
1,833,743 732,987 71,690 743,741 3,382,161 3,377,656
537,042 101,404 11,983 130,773 781,202 751,161
181,810 76,701 8,155 59,865 326,531 313,371
133,058 37,214 5,202 28,704 204,178 215,063
243,533 49,966 4,385 88,406 386,290 315,884
- 213,000 - 77,000 290,000 147,000
2,929,186 1,211,272 101,415 1,128,489 5,370,362 5,120,135

Page 52



Chulmleigh Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

20 Analysis of net assets between funds

Group

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Creditors over 1 year
Pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Company

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Creditors over | year
Pension scheme liability

Total net assets

21 Capital commitments

Group and company

Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset
funds general funds funds Total funds
£ £ £ £
- - 13,959,274 13,959,274
493,522 652,830 182,034 1,328,386
972) (494,224) - (495,196)
- - (50,000) (50,000)
- (3,119,000) - (3,119,000)
492,550 (2,960,394) 14,091,308 11,623,464
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset
funds general funds funds Total funds
£ £ £ £
- - 13,959,274 13,959,274
417,892 652,830 182,034 1,252,756
- (494,224) - (494,224)
- - (50,000) (50,000)
- (3,119,000) - (3,119,000)
417,892 (2,960,394) 14,091,308 11,548,806
2017 2016
£ £
27,000 588,073

22 Commitments under operating leases

Group and company

Operating leases

At 31 August 2017 the Group had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:
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22 Commitments under operating leases (continued)

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between one and five years
Amounts due after five years

23 Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

Net expenditure

Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Increase in stocks

Decrease in debtors

Increase/(decrease) in creditors

Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets

Net cash provided by Operating Activities

24 Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets

Capital funding received from sponsors and others
Capital grants from DfE/EFA for investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities

25 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand

Total cash and cash equivalents

Page 54

2017 2016
£ £
21,085 21,529
76,829 76,612
6,385 25,537
104,299 123,678
2017 2016
£ £
(1,082,936) (747,751)
316,728 397,763
(36,112) (37,447)
(6,412) (12,764)
213,000 68,000
77,000 79,000
(16,171) .
79,486 1,009,658
159,099 (252,502)
625,870 437,713
329,552 941,670
2017 2016
£ £
6,412 12,764
(1,126,742) (707,499)
- 50,000
3,000 4313
33,112 33,134
(1,084,218) (607,288)

At 31 August

At 31 August

2017 2016
£ £
984,612 1,739,278
984,612 1,739,278
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26 Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a
member.

27 Pension and similar obligations

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Devon County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit
schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31 March
2016.

Contributions amounting to £(59,238) (2016 - £(58,894)) were payable to the schemes at 31 August and are
included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations
2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for
teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract, although they are able to opt
out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go’ basis - these contributions along
with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations
are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with the Public
Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published by
the Department for Education on 9 June 2014.

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:
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27 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

+ employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer administration
charge (currently 14.1%))

+ total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service
to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with
the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional past service deficit
of £14,900 million

+ an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

+ the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real
earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

During the previous year the employer contribution rate was 14.1%. The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an
employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September 2015. The next valuation of the TPS is currently
underway based on April 2016 data, whereupon the employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and
will be payable from 1 April 2019.

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £311,626 (2016: £297,944).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102), the TPS is a multi-employer
pension scheme. The Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined
contribution scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local government pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The
total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2017 was £240,000 (2016 - £201,000), of which
employer's contributions totalled £184,000 (2016 - £201,000) and employees' contributions totalled £56,000
(2016 - £Nil). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 15.4 per cent for employers and 5.8 per cent for
employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department
for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions
At 31 August At 31 August

2017 2016
% %
Rate of increase in salaries 4.20 4.10
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.70 2.30
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.60 2.20
Inflation assumptions (CPI) 2.70 2.70
RPI increases 3.60 3.60
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27 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in the mortality rates.

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

At 31 August

At 31 August

2017 2016
Retiring today
Males retiring today 23.40 22.90
Females retiring today 25.50 26.20
Retiring in 20 years
Males retiring in 20 years 25.70 25.20
Females retiring in 20 years 27.90 28.60

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 August

At 31 August

2017 2016
£ £
Discount rate +0.1% 5,590 5,650
Discount rate -0.1% 5,847 5914
Mortality assumption — | year increase 5,909 5,939
Mortality assumption — 1 year decrease 5,531 5,625
CPI rate +0.1% 5,827 5,892
CPI rate -0.1% 5,610 5,670

The academy's share of the assets in the scheme were:

At 31 August

At 31 August

2017 2016
£ £
Equities 1,538,000 1,315,000
Gilts 81,000 72,000
Corporate bonds 386,000 318,000
Other bonds 64,000 59,000
Property 227,000 221,000
Cash and other liquid assets 61,000 38,000
Other 241,000 219,000
Total market value of assets 2,598,000 2,242,000

The actual return on scheme assets was £282,000 (2016 - £262,000).
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27 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

2017 2016
£ £
Current service cost 397,000 269,000
Interest cost 75,000 78,000
Admin expenses 2,000 2,000
Total amount recognized in the SOFA 474,000 349,000
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2017 2016
£ £
At start of period (5,780,000) (3,852,000)
Current service cost (397,000) (269,000)
Interest cost (127,000) (154,000)
Employee contributions (56,000) (54,000)
Actuarial (gain)/loss 611,000 (1,532,000)
Benefits paid 32,000 81,000
At 31 August (5,717,000) (5,780,000)
Changes in the fair value of academy's share of scheme assets:
2017 2016
£ £
At start of period 2,242,000 1,807,000
Interest income 50,000 75,000
Actuarial gain/(loss) 98,000 186,000
Employer contributions 184,000 201,000
Employee contributions 56,000 54,000
Benefits paid (32,000) (81,000)
At 31 August 2,598,000 2,242,000

28 Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the board of governors being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
Academy Trust has an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm’s length and
in accordance with the Academy Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

During the year the academy made the following related party transactions:

The Key Support Services Limited

(P K Osborne a Trustee of the Trust is a director of The Key Support Services Limited)

The trust purchased services from The Key Support Services Limited during the year totalling £790 (2016 -
£790) during the year. P K Osbourne was not a Trustee of the Trust when the purchase of the services was made
however the services are from the period November 2016 to November 2017. In entering into the transaction the
trust has complied with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2016. At the balance sheet date
the amount due to The Key Support Services Limited was £Nil (2016 - £Nil).
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